## Faculty Senate Minutes 1/29/2021 Virtual Meeting via Zoom

**Zoom:** Charie Faught (Chair), Peter Lucon (Vice-Chair), Atish Mitra (Secretary), Karen Wesenberg, John Ray, Miriam Young, Linda Granger, Tamara Harp, Tony Patrick, Phil Curtiss, Katherine Zodrow, Chris Gammon, Courtney Young, Abhishek Choudhury, Sue Schrader, Dan Autenrieth, Jackie Timmer, Ron White, Ulana Holtz, & Katelyn Alley

### Quorum@ 1:00pm

Welcome and Minutes (https://www.mtech.edu/facultystaff/facultysenate/minutes/index.html)

Approval for January 15, 2021 Meeting Minutes

Motion to approve, and seconded. Motion PASSED.

**Action Items** 

- II. CRC Items
  - a. January 25<sup>th</sup> items will be placed in Outlook Calendar for February 12 meeting (in order to give enough time for review)

None.

III. Conflict of Interest Process Change (see attached form)

No discussion.

Informational Items

IV. Montana State Legislature-guns on campus

Chair: Draft letter (as discussed in the last senate meeting) submitted to Commissioner Christian last Wednesday. Senators: The senate needs to be proactive in presenting the voice of the faculty on various issues. We have a Tech forum next week (Feb. 4<sup>th</sup>) where senators are encouraged to bring up any topics of interest.

V. Use of Wooclap (see attached e-mail)

Chair: discussed Wooclap – as a tool within Moodle (see attached). The faculty seemed to be of the opinion that it is better suited to synchronous online classes than asynchronous.

#### VI. Teaching and Learning Center

Chair: At Montana Tech there are several resources available department-wise. There is discussion for a learning center as a common center for teaching resources for faculty. UM has an Office of Organizational Learning and Development. Senators are requested to reach out to their departmental colleagues and see if they are interested to offer any suggestions. Senators: It will be nice to start with a list of available resources. For example: what resources do we have available for new faculty? Only then we can look at what needs to be done. Chair: will send out an email for faculty to offer suggestions, then will be back on this next time. Senator: Peer review processes such as faculty reviewing each other's lectures are beneficial. Senator: Will the special accommodations for students continue after COVID restrictions end? Need guidance on what we do from next fall — do we continue the extra accommodations such as online lectures when someone is sick, etc - or will we scale it back? These seem to be beneficial to students. Chair: This should be part of strategic planning? Chair: ASMT president was asked if there is a plan to survey students on this. Katelyn Alley: This can be made into part of the survey to be sent to students at the end of this semester.

VII. Language regarding Land Acknowledgement (see attached e-mail)

Chair: Discussed proposal sent by a faculty member (see attached).

Senators: What is the goal of this? Where is this to be posted? It is suggested that the faculty member suggesting this come and address the senate about it. Chair: will check if that is something the proposer wants.

- VIII. Activities and priorities for the upcoming year
  - Faculty and Staff Recognition
     None.
  - b. Strategic Planning

Chair: Budget is to be presented at the 4<sup>th</sup> Feb MTech forum. Also, "mission, vision and values" statement draft will be presented.

- c. Fall semester planning
  - Chair: Chair and Vice Chair will have a conversation with the provost on this, and will report back.
- d. Review of FS Standards as Compared to MTFA Standards for Instruction, Research and Scholarly Activity, and Service

Chair: had conversation with Provost. The Provost is interested in a subcommittee to discuss this. Senator: is this something the CEC wants to do? Chair: will look to see if in CEC's scope. Also, will discuss this again next time.

IX. Faculty/Staff Satisfaction Survey

Chair: One person volunteered, looking for a few more volunteers

X. Other Items

None

Hello!

We are excited to announce that we will be piloting **Wooclap** this Spring 2021 semester.

**Wooclap** is an external learning tool that allows you to actively engage with your students by setting up real time quizzes and activities that students can answer via their phones and devices. Activities can additionally be set up normally for student's to take in their own free-time.

Introduction video on Wooclaps homepage (1 minute): https://www.wooclap.com/

All of our instruction on using Wooclap:

https://mtech.teamdynamix.com/TDClient/1921/Portal/KB/ArticleDet?ID=120334

Please contact us if you are interested and want a hand setting this up. We are finding that tools like **Wooclap** are being used in the classroom as well as conferences. This is a great engagement tool!

Thank you,

## I.T. HELP DESK

406.496.4244 |



From: Southergill, Glen < GSouthergill@mtech.edu>

Sent: Thursday, January 21, 2021 7:48 PM

To: Ray, John <<u>JRay@mtech.edu</u>>; Haynes, Matthew <<u>mhaynes1@mtech.edu</u>>

Cc: Faught, Charie < CFaught@mtech.edu>

Subject: Faculty Senate Recommendation: Land Acknowledgments

Greetings, esteemed colleagues

I write to encourage Faculty Senate to draft a recommendation for adding lines for a land acknowledgment in Montana Tech's standardized auto signatures and for possible inclusion in syllabi. Although I trust the Senate to understand the rationale for why these actions matter and consider what sort of language may work best, a simple sample appears below. Please let me know if I can help draft language for the Faculty Senate to discuss.

Thank you for your consideration of my request.

Many Indigenous peoples, including the Niimiipuu (Nez Perce), Piikani (Blackfeet), Seliš (Salish), and Agaideka (Shoshone) have traditional claims to the lands upon which Montana Tech physically sits. Indigenous histories and perspectives are acknowledged and respected by the Faculty, Staff, and Administration of Montana Technological University.

Dr. Glen T. Southergill

Pronouns: He/Him/His Associate Professor of Writing Montana Tech gsouthergill@mtech.edu

# MONTANA TECHNOLOGICAL UNIVERSITY Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement and Certification

Complete the following form and submit it to your academic dean, director or executive officer on or before **September 30**<sup>th</sup> annually. For questions concerning the information required by this form contact the Office of Research.

Name: _	Dept:
osition:	Phone #:
	Contitionation
3y signing l	certification  pelow you are certifying:
1.	You have read and understand Montana Tech's "Conflict of Interest and Financial Disclosure" policy, as revised 6/8/2015.
2.	You either (check one box below):
	a. : Have no relationships or financial interests that are or could be perceived to be in conflict with your duties and responsibilities to Montana Tech in sponsored research, in professional activities, or in family relationships (nepotism).
	OR
	b. : Have potential conflicts of interest as described in the statement below.
	<u>Disclosure Statement</u>
	sing the following significant financial interests or relationships (check all applicable interests and relationships), and I attach supporting tion that identifies the person, business enterprise or entity involved and the nature and amount of the interest and/or relationship:
	ry or other payment for services (e.g., consulting fees or honoraria) from any business entity that exceeded \$5,000 during past 12 months.
Equi \$5,0	ty interests (e.g., stocks, stock options, or other ownership interests) in any publicly traded entity valued in excess of 00 or greater than 5% ownership, or a combination of stock and income from that entity that exceeds \$5,000/year. Any
Any	ership interest in a non-publicly-traded entity (such as a start-up company), regardless of its value. relationship with an entity that would be affected by the employee's research, or could be directly affected by a decision
	employee participates in at Montana Tech or involving Montana Tech funds. me from intellectual property rights (e.g., patents, copyrights, and royalties) paid by any source other than Montana Tech.
Any prov	travel which is paid for or reimbursed by another organization and which is related to my Institutional Responsibilities; ided however, that the disclosure requirement does not apply to travel that is reimbursed by a Federal, State, or local ernment agency, or an institution of higher education.
Serv decid	ice as an advisor, consultant, or in another capacity with a public or private agency that grants money to Montana Tech or despolicy for grants that could materially affect Montana Tech's eligibility for funds from that agency.
oper	agement or consulting position, board membership, or role as agent or representative of or participant in the day-to-day ations of a commercial enterprise active in field(s) related to the employee's Montana Tech responsibilities.
	ervision and/or authority to influence the hiring, salary, promotion, retention, or tenure or other employment benefits of an ediate family member or a close business associate or employee of an entity in which the employee or family member has
an o	wnership interest. relationship of yours or a family member's with an entity that is or could become a vendor or supplier to Montana Tech.
Further I ag	
• T • T	o update this disclosure on an annual basis and any time new reportable significant financial interests are obtained. o cooperate in the development of a Conflict Management Plan, if determined necessary by the University. Reet privately with the Research Office if applying for or receiving funding from the Public Health System (e.g. NIH) and comply with additional equirements mandated by PHS.
• T	o comply with any conditions or restrictions imposed by the Montana Tech to manage, reduce, or eliminate actual or potential conflicts of atterest or forfeit the award, if applicable.
Signed:	Date:
	by Vice Chancellor for Research: Date:
Reviewed h	N VICE Chancellor for Research.

See Conflict Management Plan

Other: \_\_\_\_\_

Disposition:

No Conflict

Montana Tech
POLICIES
PERSONNEL

Policy: Conflict of Interest and Financial Disclosure

Date Adopted: 12-18-1998

Revised: 8-15-2013 1-8/2021

Effective Date: 9-01-2013

Approved By: Donald M. Blackketter Les P. Cook

#### I. Introduction

Montana Technological University of the University of Montana [hereafter referred to as "Montana Tech"] actively encourages interactions with both the public and private sectors as an important component of its research, education, and public service activities. Research, educational, and public service activities supported by grants, contracts, or gifts from public and private entities and individuals provide a valuable source of funds, equipment, and topics for Montana Tech activities. Professional interactions, including consulting arrangements, between faculty and governmental entities and private businesses, advance Montana Tech's ability to provide a high-quality research and educational experience for students, and thus enhance their employment opportunities. Montana Tech's licensing of technology, assisting in new business start-ups, and other forms of technology transfer to both public and private entities, are critical to meeting society's needs.

This policy describes Montana Tech's principles for identifying and managing potential conflicts and for eliminating real conflicts of interest. It is accompanied by procedures for reviewing, eliminating, and managing such conflicts.

## II. Policy

Montana Tech and its employees are committed to conducting themselves and their activities in accordance with the highest standards of integrity and in compliance with state and federal ethics and conflict -- of -- interest laws and regulations and with Montana University System Board of Regents policy. Montana Tech is responsible to ensure that potential conflicts of interest are identified and for managing or eliminating them so that they do not improperly affect Montana Tech, decisions made by Montana Tech, or any Montana Tech research, education, and public service activities. The purpose of this policy is simultaneously to comply with state and federal regulations those (including of the Public Health http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/FR-2011-08-25/pdf/2011-21633.pdf), to ensure the integrity of research and sponsored work, to maintain public trust and confidence, and to protect the University and its faculty, staff, and students. Compliance with this policy is required by all full-time and parttime Montana Tech employees, including students who receive compensation from Montana Tech and students or others who design, conduct, or report research, educational, or public service activities of Montana Tech

**Conflict of Interest.** A conflict of interest occurs when there is a potential divergence between the employee's private interests and professional obligations to the Montana Tech, such that an independent observer might reasonably question whether the employee's professional actions or decisions could be influenced by considerations of personal gain (financial or otherwise). Potential conflicts of interest that involve the employee, spouse, domestic partner, and dependent children must be disclosed as if they applied directly to the employee. Examples of conflicts that must be disclosed include the following:

- Salary or other payment for services (e.g., consulting fees or honoraria) from any business entity that exceeded \$5,000 during the past 12 months.
- Equity interests (e.g., stocks, stock options, or other ownership interests) in publicly traded entity valued in excess of \$5,000 or greater than 5% ownership, or a combination of stock and income from that entity that exceeds \$5,000.
- Any ownership interest in a non-publicly-traded entity (such as a start-up company), regardless of its value.
- Any relationship with an entity that would be affected by the employee's research, or could be directly affected by a decision the employee participates in at Montana Tech or involving Montana Tech funds.
- Income from intellectual property rights (e.g., patents, copyrights, and royalties) paid by any source other than Montana Tech.
- Any travel which is paid for or reimbursed by another organization and which is related to my Institutional Responsibilities; provided however, that the disclosure requirement does not apply to travel that is reimbursed by a Federal, State, or local government agency, or an institution of higher education.
- Service as an advisor, consultant, or in another capacity with a public or private agency that grants money to Montana Tech or decides policy for grants that could materially affect Montana Tech's eligibility for funds from that agency.
- Management or consulting position, board membership, or role as agent or representative of or participant in the day-to-day operations of a commercial enterprise active in field(s) related to the employee's Montana Tech responsibilities.
- Supervision and/or authority to influence the hiring, salary, promotion, retention, or tenure or other employment benefits of an immediate family member or a close business associate or employee of an entity in which the employee has an ownership interest
- Any family or financial relationship with an entity that is or could become a vendor or supplier to Montana Tech, provided however that the disclosure requirement does not apply to being solely a customer or client of such entity.

The following interests are not considered conflicts and do not require disclosure:

- Income or travel payments from occasional seminars, workshops, or lectures sponsored by public or non-profit entities.
- Income or travel payments from service on advisory committees or review panels for public or non-profit entities.
- Financial interests arising solely by reason of investment in a business by a mutual fund, pension, or other institutional investment fund over which the employee does not exercise control.
- Salaries, royalties, or other remuneration received from or through Montana Tech.

• Equity interests of less than 5% ownership and a market value below \$5,000 (aggregated for the employee and immediate family) in a publicly-traded company.

Certification and Disclosure. All employees must provide a written certification and disclosure of conflicts of interest, potential conflicts of interest, and situations which could be perceived as a potential conflict of interest. The disclosure must be made at least annually, and updated promptly whenever new potential conflicts arise. In this disclosure statement, the employee certifies that he/she has read and understands this policy, and whether or not he/she has any relationships or financial interests described above, or other relationships or interests that could be perceived as being in conflict with his/her professional responsibilities at Montana Tech. If he/she has potential conflicts, these conflicts must be disclosed on the form or in an attached statement. The written disclosure must be reviewed and acknowledged by the employee's supervisor, dean, or director and by the Vice Chancellor for Research.

When a potential conflict of interest is disclosed, the Vice Chancellor for Research determines with the responsible Vice Chancellor whether a conflict exists, and they determine and whether the appropriate action is to waive the conflict, or to manage the conflict, or to require the conflict to be eliminated. The Vice Chancellor may consult with the responsible Vice Chancellor or dean to inform this determination. A conflict that is not prohibited by statute or regulation may be waived on the basis of a written determination of the following: that the potential conflict of interest is so remote or so small that there is no probability for bias; that any resolution beyond disclosure would be ineffective or inequitable; or that any bias reasonably expected would be outweighed by the interests of research progress, public health or welfare, or technology transfer. A conflict of interest that cannot be waived must be addressed by taking actions or imposing restrictions that will eliminate, reduce, or manage the conflict of interest. These actions and restrictions are to be described in a written Conflict Management Plan, signed by the employee, the supervisor, and the Vice Chancellor for Research.

Appeals. If an employee believes the conditions or restrictions imposed in the Conflict Management Plan are inappropriate, the employee may appeal or request reconsideration. The employee initiates an appeal by sending a written request to the Vice Chancellor for Research with a copy to his/her supervisor and the Vice Chancellor in his/her reporting chain. Students copy the department chair and dean for their major program. The Vice Chancellor for Research will refer the appeal to a Conflict of Interest Review Committee (CIRC), and will consider the CIRC's recommendation in revising the Conflict Management Plan. If the employee believes there is justification for further review, he/she must follow the standard appeal process in effect for Montana Tech Employees.

Conflict of Interest Review Committees (CIRCs). The Vice Chancellor for Research will determine wither a CIRC should be organized to assist in reviewing the potential for conflicts of interest regarding research and gifts. The Vice Chancellor for Research will organize a CIRC to assist in reviewing an employee's appeal regarding conditions or restrictions imposed in his/her Conflict Management Plan. The Vice Chancellor will consult with the employee's Vice Chancellor and for appeals by faculty members, with the Faculty Senate Chairperson and the member's dean to select and appoint CIRC members. Three-quarters of the CIRC's voting members will be from the applicable department(s) or area(s). Some of the members should be individuals with experience with approved external relationships. The principal objective for the CIRC is to help guard Montana Tech employees and Montana Tech from engaging in activities where the risk to integrity and reputation outweighs the value of the activity to academic and societal goals. Relevant

factors to consider are the nature of the financial or other interest, where and when the relationship commenced, recent changes in the relationship's conditions, the likelihood of a conflict of interest (will the results of the activity likely affect or be affected by the significant financial or other interests), mechanisms to ensure integrity (peer review, other independent research sites, and independent monitors and controls), the importance of the proposed activity, and the availability of alternatives to avoid the conflict of interest.

**Compliance.** Montana Tech expects employees to comply fully, accurately, honestly, and promptly with all requirements of this policy and with applicable federal and state regulations. Breaches of this policy include, but are not limited to: submitting an intentionally incomplete, erroneous, or misleading Disclosure form, failing to submit a Disclosure form annually or when a new conflict arises, and failing to provide additional information requested, and failing to comply with the conditions specified in a Conflict Management Plan. Violation of this policy may be the basis for discipline, which, if necessary, will be imposed in accordance with applicable campus and Montana University System policies and any applicable collective bargaining agreement. Potential sanctions may include, but are not limited to the following:

- Letter of admonition;
- Ineligibility to submit grant applications;
- Withholding of research approvals or privilege of supervising graduate students;
- Suspension;
- Non-renewal of probationary appointment; and
- Termination.

Recordkeeping and Reporting. The signed disclosures, waivers, and Conflict Management Plans are kept on file by the Research Office, in original paper copy or electronic form for a minimum of three years after they are created, for a minimum of three years after the completion and closure of any sponsored project they involve, or until the resolution of any action by Montana Tech or government agencies related to the records or projects, whichever is longer. All records will be maintained in a manner to protect sensitive and confidential information consistent with state and federal law. The Vice Chancellor for Research will report to external sponsoring agencies as required by the agencies the existence of any conflict of interest found by Montana Tech along with actions taken to manage, reduce, or eliminate the conflict. To the extent required by law or requested by the sponsor, the Vice Chancellor for Research will inform the University of Montana Legal Counsel, the Chancellor, and the affected sponsor whenever Montana Tech is unable to manage or satisfactorily resolve any conflict of interest related to the sponsor's activities at Montana Tech.